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One of the ILbrdfs Churches?
Trinity Hvangelical Lutheran Church
Neenah, Wisconsin

During the Nineteenth century many people of many nations

made the country of America théilr new home, One of the larger
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ethnic groups that made its way to the "new world® was

of German immigrants. ne or more of the following reasons

moved the German to seek new 1ife across the sea. Some sought

freedom from %he masses of people which had overcrowded +the

continent of Hurope. 1t was very hard to find new land to feed

new families. Many a young farmer longed for the land where

rich land was practically there for the taking. Some sought
freedom from the burdensome laws. Tpere were laws that

told them what work to do and there were laws that told +them

in which way they should worship. Real freedeoms were hard to find

in this land of monarchies. Apd finally, Germans who preceeded

them to America, whether relatives or sirangers, sent back glowing

reports of the beauty and the opportunities of this new land.,

As a result thousand upon thousand~of Germans camé@o America,
when they arrived they tended to try to live in the same place as
other-German friends and heighbors whichﬁed to concentrations of
this people in varilous areas of the eounirya Most notably, the
Midwest became home for many of them.

some of these Germans sefttled in an upper-midwest town in the
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- valley area of Wisconsin., Some of these Germans were
so=called »01d Lutherans®, who had left Germany because of reasons

of failth, It was thege Germans that Pastor Ernst rachtmann came
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upon when he came to Neenah, Wisconsin in
1859, Pasgstor Martin Stephan of Oskosh, who
had served theBe people when he could, told
Fachitmann of %his group of people in Neenah.
Fachtmann was the Wisconsin Synod*s
first “Reiseprédiger”, or “travelling Mis-

sionary.” He came to the Wisconsin Synod

~om Brandenburg, Prussiaz. He was called

;«f

Ernst Fachtmann

]

to the Lutheran congregation at Town Polk

in the spring of 1858, Seeing the need

o

for further mission work to be done farther inland, Fachitmann
received permission from his congregation to take an extensive
mission tour. He travel ed north along Lzke Michigan as far as
Sheboygan and then travelled inland, making stops at Plymouth,
Calumet Village, fond du Iac, and Oshkosh. From Oshkosh he

took a steamboat up Lake Winnebago to the city of Menasha. In
this sister city of Neenah he Tound 20 families of "0Ld Lutherans®

which had formed Trinity Iutheran church in 1857. Fachimann

;_,

left Menasha for Neenah where he found 51 families that were
about to build a church on the island between the Twin Cities,

The site for the church was on a plot of land donated 4o these
early Lutherans by the first governor of Wisconsin, James Doty.

)

Congtruction wasg actually begun but the plan was abandoned as
impractical Lo the furtherance of conservative Lutheranism. The
site wag sold and after five years the early Lutherans in this
area gplit into two groups. One group went:to Neenah and the

-

other to Menasgha. Both groups retained the name of Trinity.
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Fachtmann did not stay in Neenah, bul served various groups
of Lutherans from New Lgndon to Menasha on a rotating basis, A
more permanent pastor of the Neenah Ohurch was to be found in the
person of Pagtor E., F. Waldt who arrvived 1ln Milwaukee from HElsace,
Germany in April of 1859, President Muehlheuser sent him to Fond

du Lac where hermet Fachtmann. PFachibmann sent him to the Neenah-

Menasha mission field. This new missionary srrived shortly before

Faster in 1859. Pagtor Waldt, though, was in effect a circuit
riding pastor who alsoc served groups in Town Greenfield, Winchester,

and Woodville.

It seems that part of the strife that arose between the famili

which had attempted to build a church on tle island, was the accept-
ance of a call to Oshkosh by pastor Waldt in 1862. Pastor Waldt,
though, continued to serve the Neenah congregation travelling on

o

a regular bagis from Oshkosh to Neenah. The services were held

p_,.s

in the public school and Leavens Hall

On December 26, 1865, the group in Neenah finally organirzed
as a congregation. This has always been considered the real
birthday of Trinity Lutheran Church of Neenah. The congregation
ed Pastor Waldt to serve them on a Full=time basis. Pastor
t accepted this call and became Trinity’s first resident
pastor.

Soon this group of Christians got together plans for the

erection of a place of wor. ship. The congregation bought two
lots on the corner of hington and Walnut Sts. as the proposed
site for this house of CGod. The farmers in the church brought

in lumber from their forests and the work was supervised by
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A, Nussbicker and J. Gerhardt. On the fourteenth §undaylln Trinity,
church was dedicated to the Lord. A
all two=room parsonsage was added
to the rear of the church for Pastor”
1dt and his family.

In 1870 Pastor Waldt received a
111 to serve a congregation in Racine.
th the urging of the officials of
he Synod he accepted the call., Trinity

en igsued a call to Pastor Hagedorn

the Hermannsburger-Misslon~Institute
n Germany to become thelr next pastor.
couple of important igsues were dealt
th during his pastorate.

Trne question of lodges seems to

ve plagued Trinity at this time,

Trinity's 1lst Church . ;| P s
(18g7m1888)u ! Pastor Hagedorn took a definite stand

against the lodges which resulted in

several lodge members leaving Trinity and forming Immmanuel Lutheran
church. With the lodge question settled, Trinity accepted the
constitution which the Wisconsin Synod used as a basis for member—
ship on Nov. 30, 1873. Yet another result OfAﬁhiS more confessional
stand was the merging again of the Menasha congregation with Trinity
~under the patorate of Pastor Hagedorn. This fellowship lasted
until 1890,

The second issue that was dealt with at this time was the all-

important issue of a Christian day school. Pastor Hagedorn urged

the congregation to consider their childreds educational needs.






The congregation was moved to bulild a modest one-room school house

on the corner of Walnut street and Washington Avenue. Pastor
Hagedorn had complete charge of the school., A1l the subjectswere
taught in the German language, since practically all the people of
that day used it sgtill as the mother #ongue, The school was furnish-
ed with home=-made bhenches which sat four to six children. Such

was the bare amd nmeager beginning of Trinity Lutheran School.

Illness Torced Pastor Hagedorn to resign his call in 1875 so
the congregation once agailn turned its attention to the business
of filling its pastorate. After several calls were sent out and
declined, Candidate Otto Hoyer accepted and arrived in the summer
of 1875, Pastor Hoyer was single when he arrived but with his
marriage a new parsonage was built which served the congregation
until 1899. During this time the first full-time teachers were
called to the school. The first was a Mr. Sprengling. He was
succeeded by a Mr. Benz. Neither of these teachers seemed +to
have sefved very long because by 1880 the school was again without
a ‘teacher.

A congregation in St. Paul, Minnesota extended a call to pastor
Hoyer in 1879 which he accepted. He remained with Trinity until thec
March of 1880 in order to diminish the length of the vacancy at
Trinity. Pastor Gustave Denninger succeeded him later on in that
same year. When Pastor Denninger arrived he found a school without
a teacher. A good share of his time had to be spent as a teacher
rather ~than a pastor. But, the 1880°%s W&s{a time of a great influx
of German immigrants into the Neenah area. Both the church and

the school grew guite noticeably. Therefore, a part-time teacher
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was called to assist the pastor. Continued growth in the school
necessitatéed. the calling of another full-time teacher to teach,
gerve as organist, and direct the choir. Six different men fill-
¢ position in the next fourteen years. Tpe help did not
come any too soon since enrollment in the school topped 100 in
the 1880%s. At this time the children from the Menasha church
were also using Trinity's school. Practically in the midst of
the phenomenal growth Pastor Denninger accepted a call out of
Neenah to Brillion, Wisconsin. In May, 1887 the copgregation
called its fifth pastor in only twenty two years. Pasﬁof Traugott
Gensicke of Iron Ridge became kheir next pastor.

His pastorate is notable especilally for the acgulsition of
properties and the buillding of buildings. About six months after
Pagtor Gensicke came to Neenah, the church empowered him to contact
the members for the purpose of getting subscripitions for a new
church. It was a successful campaign because on April 15, 1888,
the church voted to bulld a-new house of God. The present lots

on which the current church was bullt were too small for the

°

propoged church so four lots about an eigth of a mile gway were

pur; chased. A building committee was elected and a Mr. Gruenhagen

of Oshkosh was engaged as the architect. The dedication of this
church took place on October 21, 1888. The Pastors Jaeckel,
Hagedorn, and Dornfield preached the sermons for the oceasion.

This church was to serve Trinity congregation for some 74 years.

3

There were other improvements that were made during the ten

years of Pastor Gensicke®s service. Sheds were built to house the

=
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teams with which the farmers came to church. An organ was bought
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for the price of $1,000. The final major project of this era was
the decision to build a new school house@

We aliready spoke of the bePaOf]iﬁdrj growth that Trinity
gschool experienced in the *80%s. The 1ittle one room school
house was well past its usefulness. The congregation met on Feb.
26, 1893 and voted to build a new school. Less than eight months
later the new school was ready for dedication. The new school
contained two classrooms, a meeting room for the cholr, and
another small storage room., With all this building, the congregation
found itself somewhat strapped financially for years to come.

A second teacher was now engaged as 2 second class was added
to the school. However, strife and unrest which led to factions

o

in the church caused the school to loose enrollment. The Menasha

hid d 2

congregation split away from Trinity once again in 1890. So the

5

econd teacher was dmooped as well as the second class. Another

ole

ty of this strife was

casual ’astor Gensicke »o resigned in 1897,

Trinity was heading into the Twentieth century as a troubled and
tfuvﬂilﬁﬁ PhUFChw

)
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“The Lora blessed His church in Neenah with the long and

faithful ministry of Pastor Albert Froehlke. Pastor Froehlke cam

from a church in Lewiston, Minnesota in 1897 to serve Trinity for

over 37 years. As a part of his call, he also served the Town
Clayton Church and the church at Mears Corners. As the Lord's
servant he ably led Trinity well into the Twentieth century.

The parsonage was once again considered inadequate so 1899
%new residence was built which was the pa rsonage until 1962, Thi
was to be the last of the comsﬁructlon work for Trinity for quite



some time.
Under Pastor Froehlke'®s leadership the school once again
was filled with vitality. Early in the new century a second class

shed and 2 second full time teacher was

5‘“"“

was once again establ

placed in charge Trinity seemed to have a hard time keeping
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its full time male teachers. From the time that the Ffirst male
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Tteacher wag called until 1912 a toiﬂl of 26 years, nine men fille
ed this position. Things changed somewhat in 1912 with the arrival
of Mr., Wilhelm Hellermann. Mr. Hellermann would stay at Trinity
until his death some 50 years later. With the arrival of Mr.
Hellermann in 1912, the congregation bullt its first teacherage

on the corner of Oak and Washington Sts.

This activity brought to a close 50 years of God's blessings
for Trinity Lutheran church in Neenah. Shortly before its 50%
anniversary in 1916, the church was rédecorated and a 1,800 pound
bell was dedicated. With hearts filled with thanksgiving and love
the congregation praised Lhc Lord for 50 years of His continued
grace and blessing. The Lord had increased his church to include
750 communicants, a voting membership of 211, and 88 children in

chool., In April the church celebrated its Golden Anniversary with
a special service of thanksgiving.

The second fifty years were to prove no'less vibrant than the
first fifty years. Again a remarkable growth was experienced
beginning in 1916. TFor several years thereafter new members were
taken in " practically every meeting. Bub the new members were

not guite like the old type of new member. Many of these members

were quite Americanized. MOst spoke fluent E English., In 1light of



of this new “problem” the guestion of @7 introducing Fnglish into
the church service and classroom was addressed. Unlike other
churches, though, Trinity solved its problem with relatively little
difficulty. On November 26, 1916, it was resolved to introduce some

gervices in Bnglish. The:second Sunday of the month, in the evening

823

service, was designated the time for an English service., Two years
later the first and third Sundays were set aside for English services,
And slready in 1921 services were conducted in both languages every
sunday. Thisg concluded a swift and evangelical switch o serve

both the German and the Ipglish speaking members of Tr inity. A

3
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potentially devisive issue was smoothly deal
lMore changes could be expected ag well in the school as enroli-

ment increased. The first change was a change of policy. In the

beginning, puplls were required to pay "Schulgeld” in amounts vary-

to ninety cents per month, depending on how many

j-do
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children there were in one family. This how expenses were mei

in the school. But the congregation came to see that the education
of its children was every membef% concern and resolved to discon-
tinue this collection from the children.

The children were also expected to purchase their own texte
bocks. Families with many children found this an onercus Financial
burden. Several organizations in the church donated sums of money
to buy the old textbooks from the dhildren and madeothem the
Dr@e ety of the school., From that time until the present children

pay only a small book rental fee for modern and up-to-date text-

books

6]

1925 was another year of decision for Trinity. It was in this
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vear that another expansion of the existing school class
this time there was no eighth grade. The pastor and the congregat

felt that it would Ufeaf]y enhance the confirmation instruction

and the Christian education of its ¢ to add another class.

n the July meeting of the congregation

)
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A third class was added
and a third teacher was called to teach this class. A canvasd

of the congregation was made for the support of this new teacher.

3
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For the first time members were able to pledge whatever they desired

rather than a stipulated amount as in the past. Thus the school
wa.s also supported by free will offerings

This year also saw the addition of a somewhat controversial

Gymnasium to the existing school house. The first proposal for the

building failed to pasg by a narrow margin. Iater the same year
it was again placed before the congregation and this time 1t

passed. The congregation granted permission for a 15,000 dollar
loan. The building would cost £24,000. The remaining amount was

to be raised through a fund drive, This drive only netted $6, 000,

though. The project was commenced even without sufficient funds on

hand. Again the church was burdened with a large debt. It was

not until 1040 that the hadies Aid and the Mother's and Daughters
G{,\}/\"\“-

Circle donated the remainig $7,000 to £ .2 the debt.

A1l the talk of finances, the necessity of ralsing post-World

-

lar I salaries, and other factors precipitated a change in giving
to The churchéé needs. At first the dues which each member was
expected to give were raised to finance the higher overhead,

Then in 1918 an envelope system for the young people 0B the

congregation was initiated. The mode of giving for the regular’
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contributors was changed to a quarterly paying of dues instead of
one lump sum, Finally, a system of which we are all familiar was
introduced in 1931. The congregation voted to "introduce the
envelope system and let the board work out the details to the

best inter®t of the congregation." This constituted =a striking
departure from the previous way of giving to the Lord's Church

a8 the members of Trinity knew it. It must have been a change for
the better, though, since the system still survives to thig day

with only minor c%dnges in its implementation,
As the years of the 1930%s unfolded the people of Trinity had

to face the reality that the years of service by thelr dearly loved

Pastor Froehlke were coming to an end. His health was bego ginning to

fall as the years of tireless service began to take their toll.

Ay

On May 19, 1935, Pastor Froehlke ended 37&ears of service to
Trinity by tendering his resignation. Sadly the church accepted
his resignation., Bwt before he could preach his farewell sermon
and before his replacement, Pastor Edmund Reim, could be installed,
Pagtor Froehlke became very i1l and died a short while later. On
June 8, 1935 Trinity put to rest its beloved servant at the age

of 69 years, 10 months, and Ziﬁays@

A full month later, on July 7th, Pastor Reim from Town of
Forest, Fond du Lac County, was installed ag pastor of Trinity
Lutheran Church. The vitality which was strongly in evidence
dvrlﬂﬁ Lﬂe patorate of Pastor Froehlke continued during the

noL g o

;&SLOWBLC of Pastor Reim. Membership continued to grow and the

b

enroliment in the school continued to increase. The School 2 again

needed to be remodeled to make room Tor another classroom. “The
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cloakroom and the hallway

classroom. A son of the congregation,

4

had not yet received a call into the pa

fourth teacher in the fall of 1935 He

&

the fall of 1939 when he accepted a cal

O, Hoyer replaced him for a year

The time had now come to call a permanent fourth

A My, Winfried Steoeckli of Madison was

of 1940.

2

Pagtor Reim took it upon himself t

record keeping The family records; bl
E

(D"

weddings were made easier to record and
the congregation accepted its fair share

s

oy

&

during the depression, by pledg it

,D
o
months

congregation to replace the old German

in place gince 1873, These changes in

untlil he became

later the new English Constitution

ey

en

which adjoined it was made into a fourth

Gandidate Amos Schwerin, who

S
4
S

storal ministry, became the

continued to served until
1 as a pastor. Candidate

ill and retired,
full-time teacher.

called to teach in the fall

o introduce a new system of
rths, deaths, baptisms, and
find. In February of 1937

of the Syngd“S deb’tfy

to pay $5,000., A few

eif
wag accepted by the
Constitution which had been

the operation of the

congregation served to smooth the transition of the Synod and
Trinity ngregation into the modern age in America.

Pastor Reim's annual report to the

congregation on January 19,

1939 recommended that the congregation study the building needs

of Trinity. The membership had grown to around souls and
the present buildings were no longer adequate., A new central
heating plant, school, and church were under consideration., Rev.
Weber, the committee on Church Architecture and Planning in the
Migsouri Synod, was even solicited for advice., However, before an
architect could be engaged Pastor Reim weceived a call to a

‘professorship at Wisconsin Lutheran Seminary.

When Pastor Reim

incurred
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accepted the call to the Seminary the building work was brought to
a gtandstill.
It would take a2 gifted man to take on a congregation of

such magnitude by himgelf, With this in mind the congregation
sent ite first call to Pastor Edgar Hoenecke of Plymouth, Michigan.
However, he returned the call. Tbe ne.i ma to receive their call
Ge A. Schaefér
Wisconsin. He
accepted the call and arrived
in Neenah on October 29,
1940, Pastor Schaefer came
to Trinity
end of its first seventy~five
yvears as a congregation.
The Parocchial report read as

followss 590
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communicants, 1,190; 16

wa

were in Grade school, and

the Sunday School had 95

members., The congregation had

grown by over

[T

50% in the third -
25 years. More than the numbers, though, the blessings could be
counted in the souls saved for eternity and the biessing and peace

of the Gospel which had been shared with thelord’s church in Neenah

e >

for what wes now geventy five vears.

The influx of peopis into the Twin Cities remained great and

Trinity was growing so rapidly. It became apparent that the wise
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thing to do would be to ask the Mission Board to begin a mission

on the west side of Neenah. Already in early 1941, the congregation

i
passed a resolution to turn to the WMission Board for help,”expresg-

ing a willingness to release members %Q%erve a8 a nucleus for this
new mission. On December 15, 1941, the First service wag conducted
at Martin Luther Evangelical Lutheran Church, the new mission. Now
this church is large and flourishing with a membership of over
1,100 souils.

Still, Trinity kept growing until it reached 2,000 souls, The
Planning Committee thought of relocating the church and school on
a new site on the south side of Neenah. Instead, in early 1948,
another mission was established on the south side, Grace Tatheran.
This congregation also haghround 350 to 400 souls.

This exciting period of mission work and expansion was followed

by an equally exciting periocd of building and physical expansion.

e Bchool was the first earnmarked Tor expansion., TheVSchool

was estimated to cost the congregation $50,000 in 1940 when
the congregation was first ready to bulld., In 1950, when the
actual work was begun, the cost had risen o more than $225, 000,
On April 6, 1950, the actual work was begun. One year to the day’
latery the project was completed. On Jyne 10, 1951, Trinity dedi-
cated 1ts new six-room school for the feeding of the Tambs of
Christ., Children from Trinity, Martin Luther, Grace, and Bethel
Lutheran in Menasha were in attendance in the new Séh@@l@ This
arrangement continued until Bethel, then Martin Luther, and finally
Grace opened thelr own schools,

The final phase of the master plan of the late "30's called

1

for the erection of a new House of God. After the achool loan was
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repald efforts began for the gathering of funds for the new church.
At first, 1t was planned that the new church would be adjacent to
the new school, but the property that needed to be bought was not

I

avallable The bullding committee was forced to look across the
street to the other side of Oak Street for additional properties.
The needed land was purchased for 50,800 dollars.

The congregation directed the building committee to engage the
services of an architect to draw up plans for the new building. By

midsummer of 1961, the architects had completed the plans and the
project was let out for bids., In early August ground was broken
and excavation began a few days later. On May 29, 1962 the corn=
erstone was Jaid., The progress was excellent and by July 29, 1962,
Trinity wag able to dedicate this new beautiful edifice to the
Glory of God.

Three services were held o celebrate this dedication. Five

2 £

sons of the congregation---Pastor Amos Schwerin, Prof. Paul Kuehl,

3y

Pastor Donald Selln@wg Pagtor Daniel Malchow, and Pastor Julius
Manteufel,~==gerved ag either speakers or liturgists during these
services, 1In the evening service, Prof. Martin Albrechﬁ conducted
a sacred concert to dedicate the new organ. It was a great day

of rejoicing for the people of Trinity as they offered to their

Lord this new church, parsonage, and 0rgart.

=i

It would seem that T‘“ﬂlt‘ would have been done with building
now for quite some time. However, 1963 saw the necessity of a new
addition to the school. Increased enrollment moved the congregation

to authorize the building of two additional classrooms onto the

school., In 1971 still another addition of a gymnasium, choir.room,
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and

other small additions finally competed the school as

it stand’itoday. The children at TLS have a modern and comfortable

building in which to grow physically and spiritually.
Trinity also became involved in another area of education

during the 1950°s. Interest had been expressed in the Fox Valley
ared for%ui%e some time that a Lutheran high school would be started
to continue the Christian education of our children through the
twelfth grade, Up to this time, a few hardy souls were daily
sending their children some 30-50 miles to Winnebago Lutheran
Academy in Fond du Lac. This, however, wasg only feasible for a

families. 1In the mid-fifties Fox Valley Lutheran High School
began to serve a federation of churhes in the FoX Cities area,
Today over 600 students from some 48 member congregations atiend

L. Some of our pastors and teachers that serve in our Synod as

well as thousands of dedicated laymen and women are a result of

the Christian education of this high school,
Another educational system served to help Trinity out in its

b3 l

obvious need for pastoral assistance. It amazes the writer that
one man wag able to serve so large of a congragation so ably

nad the last three pastors. In 1955 the Seminary in Mequon added
a fourth yvear to its curriculum which was to give its gtudents some
on=the=job experience in the pastoral ministry. Trinity was cne

of the first congregations.to implement the vicar program among
WELS churches. Certainly, this was a real blessing and help for
Pastor Schaefer as he shepherded this huge congregation., Trinity

ag had vicars every year, with the exception of 1976-1980, since

this time. Twenty seven men had the pastor and people of Trinity
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as their able teachers to help prépare them for the ministry.

With all these changes and additions at Trinity it is quite
apropos that the Christians at the Lordis church of Trinity should
have the ocecasion of their centenial during which they could stop
and reflect on all the blessings which He had showered on His
church for these hundred years. The last twenty five years leading
up to 1965 were some of the most important years in Trinity®s
history. They were years of expansion, mission work, aﬁd education,
They were years that stood Trinity Lutheran Church in good stead
for its entrance into its second century as the Lerd's church.

For eleven more years, Pastor Schaefer continued as the only
pastor at Trinity. By 1976 he had served Trinity for 36 years.

He had served in the Lord's vineyard for L4 years. The +time had

come for Pagtor Schaefer to receive some assistance from an

ordained man who could help reduce the load of this dedicated man.
In the fall of 1975 Trinity resolved to c¢all another full +time
pastor to do the work in this challenging congregation. Pastor
Douglas Engelbrecht received their call in February of 1976. He
was installed as their ninth pastor in June of 1976. The vicar
program was suspended for the next four years as these two men
served the needs of this congregation alone.
The educational system at Trinity continued to remain gtrong.

The school now consisted of nine separate classrooms with nine

11 time teachers on the staff. . Hellerman, who served the

o

church for nearly 50 years as teacher and principal was called

He
et

to his Savior's gide in 1961. Mr Winfried Stoeckli served the

school from 1940 until his death in 1962 asiboth teacher and
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principal. Mr. Sylvester Quam served from

until 1964 as both a teacher and prin-

. WMr Dale Schaumberg replaced My, Quam

principal of our school until he accepted

11 to Arizona. TherlMr, Robert Moldenhauer

called to replace him. In 1975 Mr, Jimmy

th was made the teacher of the eighth

e and principal. Mr. Groth is still

ing in this ca apacity. If any of these
are familiar it is clear that Trinity
very able and gifted men to guide the

2 o

irs 0%

Trinity Lutheran School.

In 1980, old age and the effect of the

=

that permeates our world moved Pastor
efer to tender his retirement from the
stry. He had served this vibrant con-
gregation for practically 40 years. On
March 25 1980, the congregation gathered to pay its fond farewell
and speak its thanks for the work and the dedication of Pastor
Schaefer. A special service was held wi%h a. reception held in the
gym in the afterncon. In this way the Lord brought to an end the
long and blessed ministry of this faithful man. Pastor Schaefer
wags already a rather sick man and a 1ittle more than seven months
later on October 6, 1980, he was called to his eternal rest. He
died at thke age of 73 years, 11 months, and 28 days.

With Pastor Schaeferts death, the vicar program was reinstated.

Six more vicars have served Trinity since this time. 1986 is
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the last year for the vicar program for the time being, however.
Talk began in the fall of 1984k about the need for a second pastor
to serve this parish of over 1,800 souls. By the October budget
meeting in 1985, this talk had come to serious action as the

congregation resolved to call a candidate from the 1986 class

of our Wisconsin Lutheran Seminary. Work is now in progress to

e,

£

obtain a parsonage an® prepare for the arrival of this pastor’
in the summer.

Enroilment had dropped in the school during the late 70%s
and early 80's due to the end of the baby boom. But in 1985
several new developements brought about a resurgence in enrollment.
The kindergarten was blessed with over 20 pupils which forbodes
larger classes to come, The church in Winneconne, St Paul's,
began sending sixteen or so children to Trinty school in the

I3

hopes of gaining a nucleus of students in order to star

o

;4 school

o

of its own in the not=too-distant future. Finally, a pre=school
was started in the fall of 1985 for those children who were
Tour years old. A tenth teacher was called to teach this new
prefgchoola The school now has 192 children enrolled plus 13

in the pre-gchool. The spirit of Christian education still
remaing a strong and vibrant spirit at Trinity.

1985 was a big year for Twinity for another reason. Tpe church
has become sensitive to the needs of the elderly and the handi-
capped. Plans were written up and then revised for the purpose
of adding a wheel chair ramp, an elevator, and bathrooms +o the
front of the church. This $225, 000 project is close to being

i
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approved by the congregations which help it to serve all people
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without discouraging them because of their handicaps.

A few words need to be said about the organizations at Trinity.
A variety of organizations have been started for a variety of
reasons ranging from service to fellowship.

Twenty men of Trinity assembled and founded a mutual aid
and benefit society on January 10, 1876, They called their or-
ganization “"Der Krankenverein®, or Aid Socliety., The purpose of

this organization was To assist needy members and their families

C’X"

when sickness or death struck the family. Dues were collected
from the members and then digtributed to those who had need,
Even in these modern days of insurance and Social security, the
Aid is s1ill active and helping the members of Trinity.

March 5, 1873 marked the beginning of the ladies Aid. Tits
purpose was to carry on charity work within the congregation and
among the charitable institutions of the Synod. The Ladies Aid
was also helpful in some of the building projects and school
projects throughout the years. Today the Iadies Aid still meets
once a month, on the first Wééesday of the monﬁhﬁta sew and
fellowship and learn from God®s word. They also do most of the
serving at luncheons at the funerals of members.

Another ladies group was begun,on May 24, 1924, 4o lend aid
and support to the school and the sunday School.and to have regular
meeting in the interest of furthering Christian fellowship, Through=-
out the years they have helped out these schools and given finacial
help in purchasing extra materials, furnishings, amd etc., They
gtill have this same purpose today as they meet regularly on the

second Wednegday of the month.
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During the'1970°s a mission minded group of ladies formed
an organizatlon under the Synod's proposed name of the Lutheran
Women's Missionary Society. 1In this group the ladies have an
opportunity to learn more aboulb our Synod's mission work., They
are able to serve as an impetus in their own congregation for

the doing of mission work., Theyy als ¢ have opportunity to give

financial and physical support ef the WELS mission efforts
Throughout the world.

There are several other organizations that are mostly of a
fello8hip nature. They are: The Mers Club, The Young People’s
Society, The Pioneers, and the Couples Club. These orgaﬂizatian%
too, help from time to time in serving the church in various
functions.

And so the Lord has blessed His @hurch in Neenah. Today it

L

is a church of 1,856 souls and 1,450 $% is a church that
for almost 125 years has béen showered with the grace of God. Ty
pure Word remsins. Dedicated pastors, teachers, and laypecple ar
continually working for the Lord's kingdom and its spread in
Neenah and elsewhere, The prayer of Trinty surely is thig---that
the Lord would continue to be with His church and continue o

.

guide it and bless it as He has for these One Hundred and Twenty

One years. May our Dear Lord God be pr ed?!
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